
CITY OF MERRILL 

COMMON COUNCIL 

AGENDA ● TUESDAY DECEMBER 13, 2016 

 Regular Meeting City Hall Council Chambers 7:00 PM 

1. Call to Order 

2. Invocation by Pastor Brad Main, Journey Church  

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. Roll Call 

5. Public Comment Period 

6. Minutes of previous Common Council meeting(s): 

1. Minutes of November 9, 2016 meeting   

7. Revenue & Expense Reports(s): 

1. Revenue & Expense Report for Period Ending November 30, 2016   

8. Parks & Recreation Commission  

1. Consider acceptance of $30,408 from the Recreational Trail Aids program.  
The Parks and Recreation Commission recommends acceptance.  

2. Consider acceptance of $83,342 grant from the Knowles-Nelson Stewardship 
Fund.  The Parks and Recreation Commission recommends acceptance.  

9. Personnel and Finance Committee: 

1. Consider creation of Police Department Drug Investigator position.  The 
Personnel and Finance Committee recommends approving, as submitted, the 
restructuring of the Police Department for one year. The Drug Investigator 
position would be created as a result of the restructuring. The Police Chief 
would be authorized to terminate the restructuring at any time during that 
year, if he deems it necessary. In the event the restructuring is terminated, 
the Police Department structure would revert back to the current structure.    

10. Redevelopment Authority: 

1. Consider purchase of 2101 Logan Avenue (former Merrill Pavers property) for 
$30.000.  The Redevelopment Authority recommends approval.  

11. Placing Committee Reports on File: 

1. Consider placing the following committee reports on file: Airport Commission, 
Board of Canvass, Festival Grounds Committee, Historic Preservation 
Committee, Library Board, Merrill Enrichment Center Committee, Parks & 
Recreation Commission, Personnel & Finance Committee, Redevelopment 
Authority and Water & Sewage Disposal Committee.   

12. Mayor's Appointment(s): 

1. Alderman Paul Russell to the Police & Fire Commission, term to expire May 
1, 2018.   



Agenda Common Council Tuesday December 13, 2016 

13. Ordinances: 

1. An Ordinance amending Chapter 38, Division 2, Section 38-149 of the City of 
Merrill Code of Ordinances, to adjust Sewer Service Charges.  The Water and 
Sewage Disposal Committee recommends approval.  

14. Resolutions: 

1. A Preliminary Resolution of Intent to exercise Special Assessment Powers by 
Police Power under Section 66.0703 of the Wisconsin Statutes.  Mayor 
Bialecki is bringing this resolution directly to the Common Council.  

15. Mayor's Communications 

16. Adjournment 

 

William N. Heideman, CMC, WCMC 
City Clerk 

 
The Merrill City Hall is accessible to the physically disadvantaged. If special accommodations are needed, 

please contact the Merrill City Hall at (715) 536-5594. 



CITY OF MERRILL 

COMMON COUNCIL 

MINUTES ● WEDNESDAY NOVEMBER 9, 2016 

 Regular Meeting City Hall Council Chambers 7:00 PM 

City of Merrill Common Council minutes – Wednesday November 9, 2016 

1. Call to Order 

Mayor Bialecki called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M.  
Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 

Paul Russell Alderperson - First District Present  

Pete Lokemoen Alderperson - Second District Present  

Ryan Schwartzman Alderperson - Third District Present  

Kandy Peterson Alderperson - Fourth District Present  

John Burgener Alderperson - Fifth District & President Excused  

Mary Ball Alderperson - Sixth District Present  

Rob Norton Alderperson - Seventh District Present  

Tim Meehean Alderperson - Eighth District Present  

Bill Bialecki Mayor Present  

 

Also in attendance: Public Works Director/City Engineer Rod Akey, Street 
Superintendent Dustin Bonack, Transit Director Rich Grenfell, City Attorney Tom 
Hayden, City Administrator Dave Johnson, Utility Superintendent Kim Kriewald, 
Enrichment Center Director Tammie Mrachek, Police Chief Ken Neff, Building 
Inspector/Zoning Administrator Darin Pagel, Fire Chief Dave Savone, Library Director 
Stacy Stevens, Finance Director Kathy Unertl, Park and Recreation Director Dan 
Wendorf and City Clerk Bill Heideman.  

 

2. Silent Prayer 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. Roll Call 

5. Public Comment Period 

City Clerk Heideman thanked everyone who did work related to the November 8th election.  

6. Minutes of previous Common Council meeting(s): 

1. Minutes of October 11, 2016 meeting and October 26, 2016 meeting   

Motion (Meehean/Norton) to approve.   

RESULT: APPROVED 

7. Revenue & Expense Reports(s): 

1. Revenue & Expense Report for Period Ending October 31, 2016   

Motion (Schwartzman/Russell) to approve.   

6.1.a

Packet Pg. 3

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
6-

11
-0

9 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

21
21

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

N
o

ve
m

b
er

 9
, 2

01
6 

m
ee

ti
n

g
)



Minutes Common Council Wednesday November 9, 2016 

City of Merrill Common Council minutes – Wednesday November 9, 2016 

RESULT: APPROVED 

8. Communications and Petitions: 

1. Claim filed by Riverside on the Green Apartments for damages to the entry 
door of Apartment #2 at 808 S. State Street due to forced entry by the Merrill 
Police Department, on October 7, 2016. The City's insurance carrier 
recommends that this claim be disallowed. This recommendation is based on 
the fact that an investigation by the insurance carrier revealed no negligence 
on behalf of the City. The Police Department has discretionary immunity from 
liability in this case as the officer performed the forced entry as part of his 
duty to ensure the welfare of the resident.   

Motion (Meehean/Norton) to disallow.  

RESULT: DISALLOWED 

2. Claim filed by Michael & Austin Stevenson for damages to a vehicle allegedly 
caused by driving over an exposed manhole cover at the corner of Douglas 
Street and Sixth Street, on August 19, 2016. The City's insurance carrier 
recommends that this claim be disallowed. This recommendation is based on 
the fact that the City of Merrill has a contract with Ruotsala Construction LLC 
for the 2016 East Sixth Street Reconstruction Project. The contract requires 
Ruotsala Construction LLC to carry professional liability insurance for 
protection against claims arising out of the performance of its work.   

Motion (Schwartzman/Peterson) to disallow.  

RESULT: DISALLOWED 

9. Public hearing(s): 

1. Public hearing on proposed 2017 Budget   

City Attorney Hayden read the public hearing notice.  
 
Motion (Meehean/Ball) to open the public hearing. Carried. 
 
Mark Stevenson expressed concerns with the status of the insurance claim he filed. That 
claim was disallowed earlier in the meeting. He was informed that the public hearing was 
restricted to matters pertaining to the 2017 City Budget. He was asked to discuss his 
concerns after the meeting, with City Attorney Hayden.  
 
Motion (Meehean/Schwartzman) to close the public hearing. Carried.  

10. Board of Public Works: 

1. Discuss using Double Walled HDPE Pipe for Storm Sewer 
repair/construction.  The Board of Public Works recommends approving the 
use of this type of pipe.  

Motion (Schwartzman/Ball) to approve.  

6.1.a

Packet Pg. 4

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
6-

11
-0

9 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

21
21

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

N
o

ve
m

b
er

 9
, 2

01
6 

m
ee

ti
n

g
)



Minutes Common Council Wednesday November 9, 2016 

City of Merrill Common Council minutes – Wednesday November 9, 2016 

RESULT: APPROVED 

11. City Plan Commission: 

1. Site Plan for Northwoods Veteran's Support Center at the corner of East Sixth 
Street and Johnson Street.  The City Plan Commission recommends 
approval, contingent upon the approval of the rezoning of this parcel.  

Motion (Schwartzman/Norton) to approve.  

RESULT: APPROVED 

12. Health and Safety Committee: 

1. Consider request from Collin's Bar and Grill, 2501 W. Main St., for an 
extension of premises to sell alcoholic beverages in a fenced-in area outside 
their establishment, from 11:00 A.M. on Saturday, November 12, 2016 to 2:00 
A.M., on Sunday, November 13, 2016, as part of their one-year anniversary 
celebration.  Alderman Russell is bringing this request directly to the Common 
Council.  

Motion (Russell/Ball) to approve.  

RESULT: APPROVED 

2. Application from VFW Post 1638 for a temporary Class "B" (picnic) license to 
sell fermented malt beverages on land located on Johnson Street, as part of 
Veteran's Day and new location celebration on Friday, November 11, 2016.  
Alderman Russell is bringing this application directly to the Common Council.  

Motion (Russell/Schwartzman) to approve.  

RESULT: APPROVED 

13. Personnel and Finance Committee: 

1. Consider Police Department request to authorize sale of squad rifle 
components as part of an "upfit" program.  The Personnel and Finance 
Committee recommends approval.  

Motion (Meehean/Schwartzman) to approve.  

RESULT: APPROVED 

14. Placing Committee Reports on File: 

1. Consider placing the following committee reports on file: Airport Commission, 
Board of Public Works, Board of Review, City Plan Commission, Health & 
Safety Committee, Library Board, Merrill Enrichment Center Committee, 
Personnel & Finance Committee, Police & Fire Commission, Redevelopment 
Authority and Transit Commission.   

Motion (Schwartzman/Ball) to place on file.  

6.1.a

Packet Pg. 5

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
6-

11
-0

9 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

21
21

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

N
o

ve
m

b
er

 9
, 2

01
6 

m
ee

ti
n

g
)



Minutes Common Council Wednesday November 9, 2016 

City of Merrill Common Council minutes – Wednesday November 9, 2016 

RESULT: PLACED ON FILE 

15. Mayor's Appointments: 

1. Kevin Cohrs, to the Housing Authority, term to expire November 10, 2021.   

Motion (Norton/Russell) to approve.  

RESULT: APPROVED 

16. Ordinances: 

1. An Ordinance amending Code of Ordnances Chapter 113, Article VI, Section 
113-168, related to Off Street Parking Restrictions in Residential Areas.   

City Attorney Hayden gave the ordinance a first reading.  
 
Motion (Meehean/Schwartzman) to suspend the rules and give the ordinance a second 
reading and a third reading by title only. Carried.  
 
City Attorney Hayden gave the ordinance a second reading and a third reading by title 
only.  

RESULT: REJECTED [3 TO 4] 

MOVER: Ryan Schwartzman, Alderperson - Third District 

SECONDER: Kandy Peterson, Alderperson - Fourth District 

AYES: Schwartzman, Peterson, Ball 

NAYS: Russell, Lokemoen, Norton, Meehean 

EXCUSED: Burgener 

2. An Ordinance amending the District Zoning Map of the City of Merrill, for Lot 1 
of CSM No. 1755, requested by Church Mutual Insurance Company 
(Ordinance #2016-16).   

City Attorney Hayden gave the ordinance a first reading.  
 
Motion (Schwartzman/Russell) to suspend the rules and give the ordinance a second 
reading and a third reading by title only. Carried.  
 
City Attorney Hayden gave the ordinance a second reading and a third reading by title 
only.    

RESULT: APPROVED [7 TO 0] 

MOVER: Ryan Schwartzman, Alderperson - Third District 

SECONDER: Tim Meehean, Alderperson - Eighth District 

AYES: Russell, Lokemoen, Schwartzman, Peterson, Ball, Norton, Meehean 

EXCUSED: Burgener 

3. An Ordinance amending the District Zoning Map of the City of Merrill, for Lots 
1 and 3 of Certified Survey Map  No. 426, requested by the City of Merrill 
(former Fox Point property) (Ordinance 2016-17).   

6.1.a

Packet Pg. 6

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
6-

11
-0

9 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

21
21

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

N
o

ve
m

b
er

 9
, 2

01
6 

m
ee

ti
n

g
)



Minutes Common Council Wednesday November 9, 2016 

City of Merrill Common Council minutes – Wednesday November 9, 2016 

City Attorney Hayden gave the ordinance a first reading.  
 
Motion (Meehean/Norton) to suspend the rules and give the ordinance a second reading 
and a third reading by title only. Carried.  
 
City Attorney Hayden gave the ordinance a second reading and a third reading by title 
only.  

RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 2] 

MOVER: Rob Norton, Alderperson - Seventh District 

SECONDER: Tim Meehean, Alderperson - Eighth District 

AYES: Schwartzman, Peterson, Norton, Meehean 

NAYS: Lokemoen, Ball 

ABSTAIN: Russell 

EXCUSED: Burgener 

4. An Ordinance adopting the 2017 City of Merrill budget and establishing the 
tax levy for year 2016 (Ordinance 2016-18).   

City Attorney Hayden gave the ordinance a first reading. 
 
Motion (Meehean/Schwartzman) to suspend the rules and give the ordinance a second 
reading and third reading by title only. Carried.  
 
City Attorney Hayden gave the ordinance a second reading and a third reading by title 
only.   

RESULT: APPROVED [7 TO 0] 

MOVER: Ryan Schwartzman, Alderperson - Third District 

SECONDER: Pete Lokemoen, Alderperson - Second District 

AYES: Russell, Lokemoen, Schwartzman, Peterson, Ball, Norton, Meehean 

EXCUSED: Burgener 

17. Resolutions: 

1. A Resolution ratifying the hiring of employee relatives (Resolution #2489).   

WHEREAS, the City of Merrill has, from time to time, enacted and required 
certain procedures to fill vacancies and fill newly created positions in the City 
workforce; and,  

WHEREAS, City Department Heads have been following Section 11-4 
“Nepotism” in the Personnel Policies - Employee Handbook; and, 

WHEREAS, Ordinance No.  2-191(b), “Hiring Relatives” requires approval by the 
Common Council of such hires; and,  

WHEREAS, current employee relatives, as listed below, were hired and are 
acting in a City employee capacity: 

Andrea Bennett,  07/28/2008 start date - Library 

6.1.a

Packet Pg. 7

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
6-

11
-0

9 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

21
21

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

N
o

ve
m

b
er

 9
, 2

01
6 

m
ee

ti
n

g
)



Minutes Common Council Wednesday November 9, 2016 

City of Merrill Common Council minutes – Wednesday November 9, 2016 

Kate Drewek,  09/26/2011 start date - Utility 

Todd Annis,   02/12/2012 start date - Parks & Recreation 

Geoffrey Hoock,  01/21/2013 start date - Street  

Jana Johnson,  01/18/2016 start date - Fire Administrative Assistant 

WHEREAS, former employee relatives, as listed below, were hired and are 
acting in a City employee capacity: 

Deborah Hartwig,  10/22/2002 start date - Police Crossing Guard 

Amy Severt,   05/13/2008 start date - City Hall Maintenance 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN this 9th  day of November, 2016, that the 
hiring of those persons named above is hereby ratified and approved in all 
respects, as fully as if the hiring action had been presented to and approved 
by the Common Council. 

Motion (Meehean/Schwartzman) to approve.  

RESULT: APPROVED 

2. A Resolution approving a Certified Survey Map on Heldt Street in the Town of 
Scott by Steve Schulz (Resolution #2490).   

WHEREAS, Steve Schulz has applied for approval of a division of land by 
certified survey map pursuant to Code of Ordinances Sections 111-116 and 
111-119 for land located in the Northwest ¼ of the Southwest ¼ of Section 
15, Township 31 North, Range 6 East, Town of Scott, Lincoln County, 
Wisconsin; and, 

WHEREAS, the application was referred to the City Plan Commission which 
considered the proposed division at a meeting on November 1, 2016; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission has recommended approval of the land 
division by certified survey map; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN this 9th day of November, 2016, that the 
proposed certified survey map presented by Steve Schulz and prepared by 
Charles Oleinik, Land Surveyor, involving the Northwest ¼ of the Southwest 
¼ of Section 15, Township 31 North, Range 6 East, Town of Scott, Lincoln 
County, Wisconsin is hereby approved. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk is directed to so certify the 
approval of this certified survey map and return the original to the applicant 
together with a certified copy of this resolution.    

6.1.a

Packet Pg. 8

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
6-

11
-0

9 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

21
21

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

N
o

ve
m

b
er

 9
, 2

01
6 

m
ee

ti
n

g
)



Minutes Common Council Wednesday November 9, 2016 

City of Merrill Common Council minutes – Wednesday November 9, 2016 

Motion (Schwartzman/Ball) to approve.  

RESULT: APPROVED 

18. Mayor's Communications 

Mayor Bialecki thanked the Common Council, Finance Director Unertl and City staff for their 
efforts during the 2017 budget process.  
 
Mayor Bialecki thanked City Clerk Heideman for his efforts related to the November 8th 
election. 

 

Several area events will be held in conjunction with Veteran’s Day on November 11th.  
 
The Thanksgiving holiday and the Christmas parade are both upcoming.  
 
Jay Stadium will be hosting a high school football playoff game (Amherst vs. Stanley-Boyd) 
on November 11th.  
 
Jon Leiskau, a member of the Fire Department, has received a national award for his 
community service. 
 
A Committee of the Whole meeting was scheduled for Monday, November 14th at 5:15 P.M.   

19. Adjournment 

Motion (Schwatzman/Ball) to adjourn. Carried. Adjourned at 7:38 P.M.  

6.1.a

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
6-

11
-0

9 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

21
21

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

N
o

ve
m

b
er

 9
, 2

01
6 

m
ee

ti
n

g
)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
0

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
1

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
2

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
3

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
4

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
5

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
6

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
7

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
8

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
9

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
0

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
1

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
2

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
3

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
4

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
5

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
6

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
7

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
8

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
9

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
0

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
1

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
2

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
3

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
4

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
5

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
6

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
7

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
8

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
9

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
0

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
1

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
2

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
3

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
4

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (2126 : Revenue and Expense Report)



From: Hayden, Tom
To: Wendorf, Dan; Wais, Diane; Heideman, Bill
Cc: Johnson, David; Wais, Diane
Subject: RE: council agenda item
Date: Thursday, December 08, 2016 11:50:51 AM

Bill : I’d think that all that’s  necessary for the agenda item is a minor rework of the last sentence of
Dan’s email.
 

From: Wendorf, Dan 
Sent: Thursday, December 08, 2016 11:33 AM
To: Hayden, Tom; Wais, Diane; Heideman, Bill
Cc: Johnson, David
Subject: council agenda item 
Importance: High
 
Good morning, we had a motion last night to approve two grants for the construction of the River
Bend Trail going east. . . not sure how you want to word this on the Council Agenda for next week
but I do know that we have to have approval to accept grants. And please include on the agenda for
next week’s meeting.
 
It was approved unanimously by the Commission and was to approve a grant for $30,408 from the
Recreational Trail Aids program, as well as a grant from the Knowles-Nelson Stewardship Fund for
$83,342
 
Thank you
 
Dan Wendorf
Parks & Recreation Director
City of Merrill
www.merrillparkandrec.com
(715) 536-7313
 

8.1.a

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ar
k 

an
d

 R
ec

 g
ra

n
ts

 in
fo

  (
21

29
 :

 G
ra

n
t 

fr
o

m
 R

ec
re

at
io

n
al

 T
ra

ils
 p

ro
g

ra
m

)

mailto:/O=MERRILL-EXCH/OU=FIRST ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=CITYATTORNEY
mailto:Dan.Wendorf@ci.merrill.wi.us
mailto:Diane.Wais@ci.merrill.wi.us
mailto:Bill.Heideman@ci.merrill.wi.us
mailto:David.Johnson@ci.merrill.wi.us
mailto:Diane.Wais@ci.merrill.wi.us
http://www.merrillparkandrec.com/


9.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
6

Attachment: Police Department Organizational Structure  (2104 : Review potential referendum options for



9.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
7

Attachment: Police Department Organizational Structure  (2104 : Review potential referendum options for



9.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
8

Attachment: Police Department Organizational Structure  (2104 : Review potential referendum options for Police Drug Investigator position)



10
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
9

Attachment: Merrill Pavers property information  (2124 : Consider purchase of former Merrill Pavers



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

er
ri

ll 
P

av
er

s 
p

ro
p

er
ty

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

  (
21

24
 :

 C
o

n
si

d
er

 p
u

rc
h

as
e 

o
f 

fo
rm

er
 M

er
ri

ll 
P

av
er

s



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
1

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2128 : Consider placing committee reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
2

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2128 : Consider placing committee reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
3

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2128 : Consider placing committee reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
4

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2128 : Consider placing committee reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
5

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2128 : Consider placing committee reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
6

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2128 : Consider placing committee reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
7

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2128 : Consider placing committee reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
8

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2128 : Consider placing committee reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
9

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2128 : Consider placing committee reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
0

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2128 : Consider placing committee reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
1

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2128 : Consider placing committee reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
2

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2128 : Consider placing committee reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
3

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2128 : Consider placing committee reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
4

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2128 : Consider placing committee reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
5

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2128 : Consider placing committee reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
6

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2128 : Consider placing committee reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
7

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2128 : Consider placing committee reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
8

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2128 : Consider placing committee reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
9

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2128 : Consider placing committee reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
0

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2128 : Consider placing committee reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
1

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2128 : Consider placing committee reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
2

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2128 : Consider placing committee reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
3

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2128 : Consider placing committee reports on file)



 
CITY OF MERRILL 

1004 EAST FIRST STREET 
MERRILL, WI 54452-2586 

 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2016- 
Introduced: December 13, 2016  
1st Reading: 
2nd Reading: 
3rd Reading: 
Committee/Commission Action: 
RECOMMENDED FOR PASSAGE  

 

AN ORDINANCE 
 
The Common Council of the City of Merrill, Wisconsin, does ordain as follows: 
 

Section 1. Chapter 38, Division 2, Section 38-149 of the Code of Ordinances for the 
City of Merrill is amended as follows: 

Sec. 38-149. - Basis. 

(a)  Cost of operation, maintenance and replacement; review biennally.  
(1)  The minimum quarterly billing shall be sufficient to pay the billing and customer related 

operating and capital expenses. The unit price per volume shall be sufficient to pay the 
remaining annual costs of operation and maintenance, replacement and capital costs of the 
sewerage facilities.  

(2)  The rates in this division shall be reviewed not less than biennially. Such review shall be 
performed by the city and/or its designated representative. Rates shall be adjusted, as required, to 
reflect the actual number and size of users and actual costs.  

(b)  Normal user.  
(1)  A sewer service charge for a normal user discharging domestic strength wastewater is as 

follows:  
TC = V × Cv + FC  

TC = Total sewer service charge for normal user wastewater.  

V = Volume of wastewater in units of 100 cubic feet.  

Cv = Volume unit price in dollars per 100 cubic feet.  

FC = Facilities charge per billing period.  

(2)  The total unit cost for OM&R and for capital are as follows effective January 1st of each year. 
The years 2012 2017 through 2016 2022 reflects an increase of two percent for each year:  

AN ORDINANCE: By City Plan Committee 
Re: Amending Chapter 38, Division 2, Section 38-

149 Sewer Service Charges 

13.1.a

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 a
d

ju
st

in
g

 S
ew

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 c

h
ar

g
es

  (
21

23
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 w

at
er

/s
ew

er
 c

h
ar

g
e 

in
cr

ea
se

)



 
OM&R  Capital  

Total  
 

2017 

Total  
 

2018 

Total  
 

2019  

Total  
 

2020  

Total  
 

2021 

Total  
 

2022  

Normal User:  
      

(BOD<250 mg/l, TSS<250 mg/l, Phos.<10 mg/l):  
      

Quarterly Facilities Charge  
($/Meter):  

      

5/8 inches or  
¾ inches  $18.04 $14.21 $32.25 $33.06 $33.89 $34.74 $35.61 $36.50 

1 inch  29.84 21.09 50.93 52.20 53.51 54.85 56.22 57.63 

1¼ inches  39.25 28.65 67.90 69.60 71.34 73.12 74.95 76.82 

1½ inches  49.48 38.80 88.28 90.49 92.75 95.07 97.45 99.89 

2 inches  73.06 55.95 129.01 132.24 135.55 138.94 142.41 145.97 

3 inches  128.06 96.01 224.07 229.67 235.41 241.30 247.33 253.51 

4 inches  206.67 156.60 363.27 372.35 381.66 391.20 400.98 411.00 

6 inches  403.14 306.42 709.56 727.30 745.48 764.12 783.22 802.80 

8 inches  638.93 484.84 1,123.77 1,151.86 1,180.66 1,210.18 1,240.43 1,271.44 

10 inches  953.30 720.46 1,673.76 1,715.60 1,758.49 1,802.45 1,847.51 1,893.70 

12 inches  1,267.67 959.48 2,227.15 2,282.83 2,339.90 2,398.40 2,458.36 2,519.82 

Volume Charge ($ per 100 cubic feet):  

Quarterly Charge  2.60 1.03 3.63 3.72 3.81 3.91 4.01 4.11 

Flat Rate for Unmetered Customers (Based on 17.00 CCF/quarter):  

Quarterly Charge  62.29 31.53 93.82 96.17 98.57 101.03 103.56 106.15 

13.1.a

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 a
d

ju
st

in
g

 S
ew

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 c

h
ar

g
es

  (
21

23
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 w

at
er

/s
ew

er
 c

h
ar

g
e 

in
cr

ea
se

)



  

 

 OM&R  Capital  
Total  

 
2011  

Total  
 

2012  

Total  
 

2013  

Total  
 

2014  

Total  
 

2015  

Total  
 

2016  

Normal User:        

(BOD<250 mg/l, TSS<250 mg/l, Phos.<10 mg/l):        

Quarterly Facilities Charge  
($/Meter):        

5/8 inches or  
¾ inches  $ 15.94  $ 12.56  $ 28.50  $ 29.07  $ 29.65  $ 30.24  $ 30.84  $ 31.46  

1 inch  26.36  18.53  45.00  45.90  46.82  47.76  48.72  49.69  

1¼ inches  34.69  25.31  60.00  61.20  62.42  63.67  64.94  66.24  

1½ inches  43.72  34.28  78.00  79.56  81.15  82.77  84.43  86.12  

2 inches  64.56  49.44  114.00  116.28  118.61  120.98  123.40  125.87  

3 inches  113.17  84.83  198.00  201.96  206.00  210.12  214.32  218.61  

4 inches  182.62  138.38  321.00  327.42  333.97  340.65  347.46  354.41  

6 inches  356.24  270.76  627.00  639.54  652.33  665.38  678.69  692.26  

8 inches  564.58  428.42  993.00  1,012.86  1,033.12  1,053.78  1,074.86  1,096.36  

10 inches  842.37  636.63  1,479.00  1,508.58  1,538.75  1,569.53  1,600.92  1,632.94  

12 inches  1,120.16  847.84  1,968.00  2,007.36  2,047.51  2,088.46  2,130.23  2,172.83  

Volume Charge ($ per 100 cubic feet):  

Quarterly Charge  2.30  0.90  3.20  3.26  3.33  3.40  3.47  3.54  

Flat Rate for Unmetered Customers (Based on 17.00 CCF/quarter):  

13.1.a

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 a
d

ju
st

in
g

 S
ew

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 c

h
ar

g
es

  (
21

23
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 w

at
er

/s
ew

er
 c

h
ar

g
e 

in
cr

ea
se

)



Quarterly Charge  55.04  27.86  82.90  84.56  86.25  87.98  89.74  91.53  

  

(c)  High strength dischargers. The term "high strength dischargers" means customers discharging 
wastewater having organic concentrations of biochemical oxygen demand (BOD5) greater than 250 
milligrams per liter (mg/l), total suspended solids (TSS) greater than 250 milligrams per liter 
(mg/l), or phosphorus (P) greater than ten milligrams per liter (mg/l).  

 
(1)  A sewer service charge for high strength wastewater is as follows:  

TSHS = TC + (BOD × CBOD) + (TSS × CTSS) + (P × CP)  

TCHS = Normal user wastewater charge plus high strength surcharge.  

TC = Total charge for a normal user as computed previously.  

BOD = Pounds of BOD5, in excess of domestic strength wastewater.  

CBOD = Cost per pound of BOD.  

TSS = Pounds of TSS in excess of domestic strength waste water.  

CTSS = Cost per pound of TSS.  

P = Pounds of P in excess of domestic strength wastewater.  

CP = Cost per pound of P.  

(2)  The unit costs for OM&R and for Capital are as follows:  
High strength sewage: (BOD>250 mg/l, TSS>250 mg/l, Phos.>10 mg/l):  

Quarterly facilities charge: Same as for normal user customers.  

Volume charge: Same as for normal user customers.  

Surcharge per lb. Over Domestic Strength Sewage  Surcharge Rates/Total  

  
BOD ($/lb.)  $0.675 0.575  
TSS ($/lb.)   0.660 0.568  
Phosphorus ($/lb.)  7.510 5.506  
  

Testing charge: Testing charges to determine sewage strength for billing shall be at cost.  

Section 2. Severability.  In the event any section, subsection, clause, phrase or 
portion of this ordinance is for any reason held illegal, invalid or unconstitutional by 
any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct 
and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the 
remainder of this ordinance. It is the legislative intent of the Common Council that 
this ordinance would have been adopted if such illegal provision had not been 
included or any illegal application had not been made. 

13.1.a

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 a
d

ju
st

in
g

 S
ew

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 c

h
ar

g
es

  (
21

23
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 w

at
er

/s
ew

er
 c

h
ar

g
e 

in
cr

ea
se

)



Section 3. Repeal and Effective Date.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances and 
resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  This ordinance shall take effect 
from and after its passage and publication. 

Moved by: 
 

Adopted: 
 

Approved: 
 

Published: 
 

Approved: 
 
 

William R. Bialecki, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 

William N. Heideman, City Clerk
 
  

13.1.a

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 a
d

ju
st

in
g

 S
ew

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 c

h
ar

g
es

  (
21

23
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 w

at
er

/s
ew

er
 c

h
ar

g
e 

in
cr

ea
se

)



 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO.  

 
A PRELIMINARY RESOLUTION OF INTENT TO EXERCISE SPECIAL 

ASSESSMENT POWERS BY POLICE POWER UNDER SECTION 66.0703 OF 
THE WISCONSIN STATUTES 

 
RESOLVED, by the Common Council of the City of Merrill, Wisconsin: 
 

A. The Common Council hereby declares its intention to exercise its power 
under Section 66.0703 Wisconsin Statutes, to levy special assessments 
under the police power upon all properties abutting the following 
improvements in the City of Merrill, Wisconsin: 

 
1. Sidewalk inspection pursuant to sidewalk inspection program.  

Sidewalk maintenance area is generally confined to the Fourth 
District:  
 
a)  Isolated sidewalk repairs requested or needed. 
b)  Driveway approaches requested or needed. 
c)  Curb and gutter requested or needed. 
d)             New sidewalk extensions as requested and/or 
                approved by Board of Public Works.  
 

2. Resurfacing of Poplar Street from East 5th Street north to East 6th 
Street involving: 

  
a) Curb and gutter placement and pavement replacement 
b) Limited sidewalk replacement associated with curb and 

gutter replacements. 
 
3. Reconstruction of Chestnut Street from East 6th Street north to East 

8th Street involving: 
 
a)  Replacement of water main and laterals. 
b)  Replacement of sewer main and laterals. 
c)  Replacement and upgrade of existing storm sewer. 
d)  Curb and gutter and pavement replacement. 
e) Limited sidewalk replacement associated with curb and 

gutter replacements. 
 

4. Paving of Edgewater Drive from Grand Avenue to Highland Drive 
involving: 

  

14.1.a

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 S
p

ec
ia

l A
ss

es
sm

en
ts

  (
21

22
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 S

p
ec

ia
l A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
)



a) Curb and gutter and pavement placement. 
b) Storm sewer inlet adjustments. 

 
5. Paving of Highland Drive, entire length, involving: 
  

a) Curb and gutter and pavement placement. 
b) Storm sewer inlet adjustments. 

 
6. Paving of Francis Street from East 6th Street to East 8th Street 

involving: 
  

a) Curb and gutter and pavement placement. 
b) Storm sewer inlet adjustments. 

 
7. Paving of Hollywood Drive from East 8th Street to East 10th Street 

involving: 
  

a) Curb and gutter placement and pavement replacement. 
b) Storm sewer inlet adjustments. 

 
8. Paving of East Tenth Street from Sales Street to Memorial Drive 

involving: 
 a) Curb and gutter placement and pavement replacement. 
 b) Storm sewer inlet adjustments. 
 c) Sidewalk installation, north side only. 

 
B. Said public improvements shall include, where appropriate: 
  

1. The grading of said street. 
2. The surfacing of said street with asphalt. 
3. The installation of curb and gutter on said street. 
4. The installation, removal or replacement of sidewalk, driveway and 

curb and gutter on said street. 
5. The installation of water main and water laterals on said street. 
6. The installation of sanitary sewer and sewer laterals on said street. 
7.   The installation of storm sewer on said street. 
8. The necessary landscaping on said street. 
9. All improvements shall be completed to plans and specifications 

prepared or approved by the Public Works Director and recorded in 
the office of the Public Works Director/City Engineer. 

 
C. The Common Council determines that the above improvements constitute 

an exercise of the police power and the amount assessed each parcel 
abutting on the street shall be on a reasonable basis as approved by the 
Common Council and which rates are in effect at the time of installation in 
accordance with special assessment procedures set forth in provisions of 

14.1.a

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 S
p

ec
ia

l A
ss

es
sm

en
ts

  (
21

22
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 S

p
ec

ia
l A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
)



Chapter 18, Article III, Division 3 of the Code of Ordinances, City of Merrill, 
Wisconsin. 

 
D. The assessments against any parcels of land may be paid in cash not 

later than November 1 of the year such improvements are made, or in 
installments as provided by Chapter 18, Article III, Division 3 of the Code 
of Ordinances, City of Merrill, Wisconsin.  Rate of interest on installment 
payments shall be as set by Common Council action. 

 
E. The City Engineering/Zoning Department shall, with respect to the items 

mentioned at paragraph A above, prepare a report consisting of: 
 
1. Preliminary or final plans and specifications with maps of the 

improvements. 
2. An estimate of the entire cost of the proposed work or improvements. 
3. A schedule of the proposed assessments as to each parcel of 

property affected. 
4. A statement that the properties against which the assessments are 

proposed are benefited and that the improvements constitute an 
exercise of the police power. 

 
F. The City Engineering/Zoning Department shall complete and file such 

reports in the City Clerk’s office for public inspection no later than 
December 23rd, 2016. 

 
 The Board of Public Works of the City of Merrill shall hold a public 

hearing on Wednesday, January 25th, 2017 at 6:00 p.m.  The hearing shall be 
held in the Council Chambers in the City Hall, Merrill, Wisconsin, on the 
improvements mentioned in paragraph A above.  The City Clerk shall cause a 
notice of said hearing to be published once as a Class I notice no later than 
December 23rd, 2016.  The City Clerk shall mail a copy of the notice to all 
interested persons at least ten (10) days before the date of the hearing. 

  

Recommended by:  Mayor Bialecki 
 
 
Moved: 

 
Passed: 

 

CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN 
 
 
William R. Bialecki 
Mayor 
 
 
 
William N. Heideman 
City Clerk 

 
 

14.1.a

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 S
p

ec
ia

l A
ss

es
sm

en
ts

  (
21

22
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 S

p
ec

ia
l A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
)


	Agenda Packet
	1. Call to Order
	1. Roll Call

	2. Invocation by Pastor Brad Main, Journey Church 
	3. Pledge of Allegiance
	4. Roll Call
	5. Public Comment Period
	6. Minutes of previous Common Council meeting(s):
	1. 2121 : Minutes of November 9, 2016 meeting
	a. 2016-11-09 Council Minutes


	7. Revenue & Expense Reports(s):
	1. 2126 : Revenue and Expense Report
	a. Revenue and Expense Report


	8. Parks & Recreation Commission 
	1. 2129 : Grant from Recreational Trails program
	a. Park and Rec grants info

	2. 2130 : Grant from Knowles-Nelson Stewardship Fund

	9. Personnel and Finance Committee:
	1. 2104 : Review potential referendum options for Police Drug Investigator position
	a. Police Department Organizational Structure


	10. Redevelopment Authority:
	1. 2124 : Consider purchase of former Merrill Pavers property
	a. Merrill Pavers property information


	11. Placing Committee Reports on File:
	1. 2128 : Consider placing committee reports on file
	a. Committee Reports


	12. Mayor's Appointment(s):
	1. 2127 : Appoint Paul Russell to Police & Fire Commission

	13. Ordinances:
	1. 2123 : Ordinance on water/sewer charge increase
	a. Ordinance adjusting Sewer Service charges


	14. Resolutions:
	1. 2122 : Preliminary Resolution on Special Assessments
	a. Preliminary Resolution on Special Assessments


	15. Mayor's Communications
	16. Adjournment

	Appendix
	6.1.a · 2016-11-09 Council Minutes
	7.1.a · Revenue and Expense Report
	8.1.a · Park and Rec grants info
	9.1.a · Police Department Organizational Structure
	10.1.a · Merrill Pavers property information
	11.1.a · Committee Reports
	13.1.a · Ordinance adjusting Sewer Service charges
	14.1.a · Preliminary Resolution on Special Assessments


